
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda 

Adult Care and Well Being 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Wednesday, 25 March 2015, 10.00 am 
County Hall, Worcester 
 
All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

 

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 728713 or by emailing 

democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

 



 

 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  

 Sponsorship by a 3
rd

 party of your member or election expenses 

 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 

 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 

 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 

 
      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

 Register it within 28 days and  

 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  
- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 

      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 

 No need to register them but 

 You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 
  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  

a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 
 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 

 affects your pecuniary interests OR  
relates to a planning or regulatory matter 

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
DON'T FORGET 

 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 
Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f 



 

Agenda produced and published by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP. For general enquiries: 01905 763763 Worcestershire Hub (01905) 765765  
Email: worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please contact Emma James/Jo Weston 
telephone:Worcester(01905) 76 6627,email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk  
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website at 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees 
 
 
Date of Issue: Tuesday, 17 March 2015 

 
 

Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Wednesday, 25 March 2015, 10.00 am, County Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership 
Councillors:  
Mr T A L Wells (Chairman), Mrs J L M A Griffiths (Vice Chairman), Mr R C Adams, 
Mr C J Bloore, Mr A Fry, Mr P Grove, Mrs A T Hingley, Mr C G Holt and Mr J W Parish 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Item No Subject Page No 

 

1  Apologies and Welcome 
 

 

2  Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3  Public Participation 
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services, in writing or by email indicating the 
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am 
on the working day before the meeting (in this case 24 March 2015). 
Enquiries can be made through the telephone number/email address 
below. 
 

 

4  Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
Previously circulated 
 

 

5  Carers Strategy 2015-2017 
 

1 - 22 

 

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Adult Care and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 25 March 2015 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CARERS' STRATEGY 2015-2017 
 
Summary 1. The Adult Care and Well-being Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

has the opportunity to comment on the Worcestershire Carers' 
Strategy 2015-2017, as part of the consultation on the draft 
document. 
 
2. Contribution is also sought from councillors involved in scrutiny 
of services for Children and Young People, since the Strategy 
addresses both children and adults. 
 
3. Representatives from Worcestershire Association of Carers and 
from Worcestershire Healthwatch have been invited, to provide 
feedback from the carer community. 
 
4. The Head of Integrated Commissioning and the Cabinet 
Members with responsibility for Adult Social Care and also for 
Health and Well-being, have been invited to the meeting. 
 

Background 5. The Carers Strategy 2010-2014 'Carers at the Heart of 
Worcestershire's Families and Communities' is being refreshed. 
The new draft Strategy has been open to consultation from 26 
January until March and is due to be signed off by Worcestershire's 
Health and Well-being Board on 12 May. 
 
6. The Strategy sets out the Council's vision for carers in 
Worcestershire, its commitment, what it wants to achieve and how. 

 
7. Clause 10 (3) of the Care Act defines a carer as 'an adult who 
provides or intends to provide care for another adult ("adult needing 
care"). 

 
8. Another definition is included in the Department of Health's 
policy paper "Recognised, Valued and Supported: Next Steps for 
the Carers' Strategy, 2010", which defines a carer as "someone of 
any age who provides unpaid support to family or friends who could 
not manage without this help. This could be caring for a relative, 
partner, a child or friend who is ill, frail, disabled or has mental 
health or substance misuse problems". 
 
9. The context for the refreshed Strategy is set out in its 
introductory paragraphs, referring to: 

 Huge changes for people who need social care, their carers 
and service providers – arising from the Care Act 2014, 
which comes into force in April 2015 

 Central Government's commitment to further integration of 
health and social care 

Adult Care and Well Being  
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

25 March 2015 
Item 5     

 

Page 1



 
 

Adult Care and Well-Being Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 25 March 2015 
 
 

 Clarification around the law relating to young carers – as a 
result of the Children and Families Act 2014 (section 17 of 
the 1989 Children Act) that coincides also with the Care Act 

 Less money available to spend on people who need support, 
because of continuing and significant pressures on public 
sector funding. 

 
10. The draft Strategy and consultation questionnaire have been 
circulated to all county councillors and are attached to this report. 
 

 
 
 

11. The Council's website contains information for Worcestershire's 
carers, including details of the draft Strategy at the following web-
link: http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20075/carers 
Panel members will be aware that the Directorate of Adult Services 
and Health is due to launch new information web pages 'Your life, 
your choice' from April, which will provide further information on 
social care and health services. 

  

Purpose of this 
Meeting 
 

12. The Panel has the opportunity to put forward comments on the 
draft Strategy. In doing so, panel members may reflect on the 
following points: 

 Who has been consulted and how? 

 What have been the main messages and how will they be 
addressed? 

 What do members think of the vision and suggested local 
outcomes? 

 Whether there will be resources to support the Strategy's 
implementation? 
 

Next Steps 13. Arising from the discussion, members are asked to determine: 

 any further information needs or potential areas for scrutiny 

 any comments to forward to the Cabinet Member. 

  

Supporting 
Information 

Appendix 1 – Draft Worcestershire Carers' Strategy 2015-17 
Appendix 2 – Worcestershire Carers' Strategy Consultation 
 
 

Contact Points County Council Contact Points: 
County Council: 01905 763763 
Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765 
Email: worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

 Specific Contact Points for this Report: 
Emma James/Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers:  
01905 766627 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Background 
Papers 

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services) the following background papers relate to the 
subject matter of this report:  

 

Page 2

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20075/carers
mailto:worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document Details: 

Status: Version 0.1 

Date: 21/01/2015 

Document Location: www.worcestershire.gov.uk/carers  

Contact: Martin Heuter / Joint Commissioning Manager / Tel: 01905 763763 

 

Worcestershire Carers 
Strategy 2015-17 
 

Page 3

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/carers


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 2 

Contents 
Worcestershire Carers Strategy 2015-17 ................................................................................................... 1 

Contents .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Context .................................................................................................................................................... 4 

National ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Local .................................................................................................................................................... 5 

The local picture ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

Vision ...................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Worcestershire's Commitment to Carers ................................................................................................ 6 

Outcomes – what do we want to achieve? ............................................................................................. 7 

National Outcomes from National Carers Strategy 2014-16 ............................................................... 7 

Local Outcomes .................................................................................................................................. 7 

Key themes and approaches - how are we going to achieve it? ............................................................. 8 

Information and advice ........................................................................................................................ 8 

Support in the community .................................................................................................................... 8 

Training ............................................................................................................................................... 8 

Health and other universal services .................................................................................................... 8 

Adult social care assessments ............................................................................................................ 9 

Adult social care funded services ........................................................................................................ 9 

Safeguarding ....................................................................................................................................... 9 

Governance ......................................................................................................................................... 9 

Implementation and evaluation ............................................................................................................. 10 

Appendix ............................................................................................................................................... 11 

Worcestershire Carers' Charter 2010 ................................................................................................ 11 

What is this charter for? .................................................................................................................... 11 

Who is this charter for? ..................................................................................................................... 11 

Where does it come from? ................................................................................................................ 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 3 

 

Introduction 
1. Health and social care is changing, not only in Worcestershire. The Care Act 2014 comes into force 

in April 2015 and heralds huge changes for people who need social care, their carers and the 
providers of services.  Alongside this, the Government is committed to greater integration of health 
and social care, reflected in the Better Care Fund which makes specific provision for pooling funding 
for carers (and service users). Furthermore, the Children and Families Act 2014 includes changes to 
section 17 of the 1989 Children Act that coincide with the implementation of the Care Act and 
clarifies the law relating to young carers. 

2. At the same time the public sector is facing a continuing and significant financial challenge, with less 
money available to support an increasing number of people who need support, be it because of their 
age, disabilities or other reasons. Increasingly communities, families and individuals will have the 
opportunity to take greater responsibility for their own health and care. 

3. Worcestershire is responding to these challenges by: 

• Continuing to integrate health and social care services, through the Well Connected programme 
and as a national Pioneer. 

• As part of this working through the County Council's Future Lives programme to promote well-
being and independence and reform adult social care so that it allows greater choice and control, 
meets the requirements of the Care Act, and is sustainable within the funding available. 

4. This Strategy is set in the context of this changed environment and will attempt to respond in a 
realistic yet imaginative and creative way to face the challenges ahead. 

5. Clause 10 (3) of the Care Act defines a carer as:  
“an adult who provides or intends to provide care for another adult (“adult needing care”).  
Another definition is included in "Recognised, Valued and Supported: Next Steps for the Carers 
Strategy, 2010" which defines a carer as: 
"A carer is someone of any age who provides unpaid support to family or friends who could not 
manage without this help. This could be caring for a relative, partner, a child or friend who is ill, frail, 
disabled or has mental health or substance misuse problems"  

This definition includes: 

Adult carers:  any adult who provides care to another adult, but who is not under contract to do so 
or as part of voluntary work.  Care includes providing assistance to enable someone to carry out 
basic care activities, access necessary facilities or services, or engage in work, education, training or 
volunteering. 

Young carers:  any young person under the age of 18 who is in some way affected by the need to 
take physical, practical and/or emotional responsibility for the care of another person, often taking on 
a level of responsibility that is inappropriate to their age or development 

Parent Carers:  any parent of a disabled child or young person up to the age of 19 who provides 
substantial and regular carer beyond that which would usually be expected for a similarly aged child. 

Page 5

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 4 

6. The Care Act for the first time gives adult carers and young carers who are transitioning into 
adulthood the same rights to assessment and support as the persons they care for. It includes duties 
for: 

• Well-being: the Care Act gives local authorities the duty to consider in all its actions the well-
being of adult carers and young carers who are transitioning into adulthood.). It requires the local 
authority to provide information, advice and support to ensure that carers' wellbeing is promoted. 
Each carer will have different needs and aspirations and all service providers and commissioners 
will work towards reflecting this in all their actions. 

• Information and advice: local authorities have to provide relevant information and advice so that 
adult carers and young carers who are transitioning into adulthood can find out about how to look 
after themselves as well as finding out about support and care available from adult social care 
services. 

• Prevention: local authorities have a duty to meet the needs of adult carers and young carers 
who are transitioning into adulthood to reduce their support needs by maintaining independence 
and good health and promoting wellbeing. All partners will work with carers to identify the 
resources already available to them in their family and community networks and put support in 
place to complement these where necessary. This will work in different ways, through whole 
population approaches and through individual approaches. An associated commissioning plan 
and action plan will explain the approach in more detail and how achievements will be measured. 

• Assessments: carers assessments under the Care Act 2014 will consider the impact of caring 
on the carer and what needs to happen to secure carers' general health and wellbeing, making 
best use of available resources and support in the community.  

• Meeting support and care needs: there is now an entitlement for support for those carers who 
are eligible. 

7. In addition, the new provisions of the Children and Families Act include 

• The right to an assessment of needs for support or all young carers under 18 regardless of who 
they care for, what they provide or how often they provide it. 

• A duty on local authorities to undertake such an assessment on request on the identification of 
need. 

• A duty on local authorities to assess a parent carer or a young carer if it appears they may have 
needs for support, or if they request an assessment, where the local authority are satisfied that 
they may provide or arrange for the provision of services under section 17 of the Children Act 
1989. The parent carers’ needs assessment must have regard to the wellbeing of the parent 
carer (as included in the Care Act) and the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of the 
disabled child cared for, and any other child for whom the parent carer has parental 
responsibility. 

• A requirement that local authorities must be proactive in identifying young carers and give 
consideration as to whether they are "child in need". 

• Making links between adults' and children's legislation to enable the assessment of a young carer 
to be aligned with the assessment of the person they care for  with the aim of assessing the 
impact of the cared for persons needs on the wellbeing, welfare, education and development of 
the young carer (i.e. preventing inappropriate caring). 

Context 
8. The development of this strategy has been informed by the following national and local strategies, 

policies and other documents. 

Page 6

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 5 

National 

• ‘Recognised, Valued and Supported: Next Steps for the Carers Strategy’ (HM Government, 
2010) setting out the current government's commitment to working with carers 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recognised-valued-and-supported-next-steps-
for-the-carers-strategy  

• Carers Strategy: the Second National Action Plan 2014 to 2016 identifies key actions to be taken 
by Government between 2014 and 2016 with four priorities: identification and recognition, 
realising and releasing potential, a life alongside caring and supporting carers to stay healthy 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/368478/Carers
_Strategy_-_Second_National_Action_Plan_2014_-_2016.pdf  

• NHS England’s Commitment to Carers – May 2014 sets out the key areas where the NHS will 
support carers, including raising the profile of carers, education, training and information and 
well-coordinated care.  www.england.nhs.uk/wp.../2014/.../commitment-to-carers-may14.pdf  

• Care Act 2014 and Statutory Guidance "… putting carers on an equal legal footing to those they 
care for and putting their needs at the centre of the legislation” 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-statutory-guidance-for-
implementation 

• Children & Families Act 2014 links young carers into the overall carers discussion, including the 
preparation for adulthood, choice and control for young carers and the regard for young carers' 
health and well being. http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/6/section/97/enacted  

Local  

• Five Year Health and Care Strategy for Worcestershire sets out the strategic direction for the 
three Clinical Commissioning Groups and the Council in Worcestershire 
www.wyreforestccg.nhs.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId...   

• Future Lives is Worcestershire County Council's major change programme in Adult Social Care 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/futurelives  

• Worcestershire Joint Health & Well Being Strategy 
www.worcestershirepartnership.org.uk/.../Joint-Health-and-Wellbeing- Strategy-2013-16.pdf  

• Worcestershire Carers Strategy 2009-2014: this is the original Carers Strategy in Worcestershire 
which is being refreshed with the current document 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/file/4364/carers_strategy  

• Worcestershire Carers Charter 2010. This charter states the commitments by public sector 
providers to support carers [see Appendix 1] 

• Worcestershire Carers Survey (2013) – this survey confirms the aspirations and needs of carers 
which reflect those identified at a national level.  

• Improving access to training, knowledge and skills to support carers in their caring role (2014, 
ADASS WM) – a survey undertaken into the training needs and requirements of carers to ensure 
they can have the confidence and skills to continue to care. 

• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment update September 2014: includes information about the 
current and projected monitor health and social care needs of the local population. 

The local picture 
• There are currently 67,000 adult carers and young carers in Worcestershire [estimated] – the 

majority of these are supported by informal networks of friends and relatives or are self-sufficient. 
In addition there are who identified themselves in the 2011 Census. 

Page 7

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recognised-valued-and-supported-next-steps-for-the-carers-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/recognised-valued-and-supported-next-steps-for-the-carers-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/368478/Carers_Strategy_-_Second_National_Action_Plan_2014_-_2016.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/368478/Carers_Strategy_-_Second_National_Action_Plan_2014_-_2016.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp.../2014/.../commitment-to-carers-may14.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-statutory-guidance-for-implementation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-statutory-guidance-for-implementation
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/6/section/97/enacted
http://www.wyreforestccg.nhs.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/futurelives
http://www.worcestershirepartnership.org.uk/.../Joint-Health-and-Wellbeing-%20Strategy-2013-16.pdf
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/file/4364/carers_strategy


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 6 

• Carer support organisations and Worcestershire County Council are in contact with some 9,000 
carers and this has been increasing every year and our commissioned support organisation for 
young carers is working with over 260 young people. All of these numbers have been increasing 
every year. 

• Worcestershire County Council undertook 5,389 carers assessments in 2013/14. 

• A carers pathway exists for adult carers which includes a process that reduces waiting times for 
carers assessments and signposts carers to the appropriate support services. 

• Carers are involved in key discussions through consultative groups with both the Council, the 
Clinical Commissioning Groups s and the main NHS Provider Trusts. 

• Worcestershire Health and Care Trust and Acute Trust both have carer's policies/strategies 
which have been developed with substantial input by carers. 

• Young Carers have a voice through the Young Carers Focus Group and they are actively 
involved in consultation and representation about the particular circumstances and needs of 
young carers. In June 2014, they organised a conference to inform and inspire local 
stakeholders. 

• A Memorandum of Understanding between the County Council's Directorates of Adult Services 
and Health and Children's Services is in development to ensure strategic and operational joint 
working so that young people with caring responsibilities and those looked after by parent carers 
are able to make a successful transition into adulthood with the information, advice and support 
that is appropriate to their needs. Alongside this, referral and response pathways are also being 
updated to ensure that young and young adult carers are effectively identified and enabled to 
receive the support they need. 

Vision 
9. Our vision is that adult, parent and young carers will be recognised and valued by the wider 

community and statutory agencies in Worcestershire for the support and care they provide to 
vulnerable adults. They will receive appropriate support where necessary to help them provide care 
safely and maintain a balance between their caring responsibilities and a life outside caring. We will 
assist them in achieving their potential, maintaining mental and physical health and wellbeing, 
access training and employment and support them to be as independent as possible. 

Worcestershire's Commitment to Carers  
10. The development and implementation of this Strategy is based on the following principles that have 

been agreed by carers' representatives. 

• Focus on carer outcomes – the desired outcomes of carers should inform decision making and 
any services provided. 

• Recognition and respect – the vital role of carers in complementing statutory health and social 
care services means that carers should receive recognition and respect for their contribution, 
both from statutory agencies and the wider community. 

• Involvement in decision making – carers should be recognised as 'expert care partners' and 
actively engaged by health and social care professionals in the statutory and voluntary sectors 
wherever feasible in discussions about the provision of services for patients and service users. 

• Caring safely – there should be support available where necessary for carers to help them 
provide care safely and ensure that they and the people they care for are safeguarded. 

Page 8

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 7 

• Equitable support for all – the needs and aspirations of carers, whatever the reason for their 
caring responsibility or whatever their personal circumstances may be, should be equally 
addressed. 

• Personalised support – any services carers receive should be tailored to meet their individual 
needs and aspirations. 

• Co-ordinated services – organisations that provide services for carers and patients or service 
users should work together to ensure that outcomes for carers are met. 

• A life of their own – carers have a right to their own life and their personal needs and 
aspirations should be considered to help them maintain a balance between their caring 
responsibilities and a life outside caring. 

• Co-production – all partners are committed to working collaboratively with carers and their 
support organisations.   

Outcomes – what do we want to achieve? 
11. The outcomes in the original version of the strategy were reviewed by carers in March 2014, and 

were found to be appropriate.  Consequently they have been retained in this refreshed strategy. 
These national and local outcomes will be used to develop a framework to evaluate the impact of 
support for carers.  

12. The views of carers themselves will be key in determining whether or not these outcomes have been 
achieved. Their views will be sought to assess the effectiveness of support services, and the extent 
to which key agencies and front line services consider their needs and aspirations. 

National Outcomes from National 
Carers Strategy 2014-16 

Local Outcomes 

Carers will be respected as expert care 
partners and will have access to the 
integrated and personalised services they 
need to support them in their caring role.  

 

• I am recognised and respected in my role 
as a carer 

• I feel confident that there is a support 
available  

• I feel able to care safely  

• The caring I do is appropriate to my age 
and capabilities 

• I understand how to access support 

• I am involved & can influence the 
assessment of my needs and aspirations 

• Any services I receive meet my needs and 
aspirations 

Carers will be able to have a life of their 
own alongside their caring role. Carers will 
be supported so that they can achieve a 
good quality of life and are not forced into 
financial hardship by their caring role.  

 

• I feel able to achieve a balance between 
my caring role and my personal life 

• I feel connected to others in the community 

• I know how to maximise my income to meet 
basic needs 

• I feel able to fully participate in education or 

Page 9

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 8 

training and enter or re-enter the 
employment market when I wish 

Carers will be supported to stay mentally 
and physically well and treated with 
dignity.  

 

• My physical health and emotional wellbeing 
has been maintained 

• I am able to manage stress 

• I feel confident to fulfil my role as a carer 

• I am able to maintain a dignified 
relationship with the person I care for 

 

Key themes and approaches - how are we 
going to achieve it? 
Information and advice 

13. We will ensure that there is comprehensive and accessible information and advice available for 
carers, including: 

• How to maintain health and well-being 

• How to find support in the community 

• How to find support to manage finances 

• How to find support into employment 

• How to access a carers assessment 

• Details of the services available for patients, services users and carers themselves to help people 
take control and make an informed choice. 

14. Information and advice will be available on Your Life, Your Choice and through the Digital Inclusion 
Strategy we will put in place measures to support people to use the internet. 

Support in the community 

15. Many carers find support in local carer groups which are run by and for carers themselves. We will 
encourage and support the development and maintenance of local carer groups that can offer 
support to carers, and ensure that carers know how to access this support. 

16. We will work with local providers of education, training, and support into employment and with leisure 
services to promote access for carers and remove barriers to employment and training, and ensure 
that carers know how to access these opportunities. 

Training 

17. We will develop and commission a carers training programme to help carers develop the practical 
and emotional skills they need to feel confident to maintain their health and well-being and sustain 
them in their caring role. 

Health and other universal services 

Page 10

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 9 

18. We will encourage partners to become "Carer Aware" and will offer training to staff in all local 
organisations that provide support and care to help them become "Carer Aware" and "Young Carer 
Aware".  

19. We will encourage schools, colleges and other local services to recognise and support young carers 
and young adult carers, and will assist them in this by piloting the Young Carers in Schools 
programme. 

Adult social care assessments 

20. We will offer an assessment to any adult carer and young carer who is transitioning into adulthood 
who requests one to help them decide the extent of their caring role, identify their key outcomes, 
maximise their own potential, find support locally, and determine whether they are eligible for any 
additional funding from adult social care.  Assessments will be undertaken separately for services 
users and carers or as whole family assessments depending on their preference.  

21. We will offer online assessments which will be simple and easy to access for those who have access 
to the internet. 

22. Based on the outcome of the assessment, we will work with carers and – where appropriate the 
cared for - to develop a personalised support plan that describes how their key outcomes will be met, 
maximising their own resources, accessing support in the community and any additional support 
from the Council and NHS partners.  

23. We will offer an assessment to every young or young adult carer that is identified or who requests it.  
Based on the outcome of this assessment, a personalised support plan will be developed with the 
young or young adult carer that describes how their key outcomes will be met, maximising their own 
resources, accessing support in the community, and where appropriate through support from Council 
commissioned services or Children's Services Social Care (including whether they are deemed to be 
a Child in Need). 

Adult social care funded services 

24. Carers who are eligible for additional funding from adult social care will be offered a personal budget. 
They will be able to take this as a direct payment and purchase their own services. For those that do 
not wish to take a Direct Payment, they will have access to a third party to manage the personal 
budget on their behalf.  

25. We will ensure that there is a range of services and providers for carers to choose from –and that 
details about these, including quality and cost where applicable are available on "Your Life, Your 
Choice", the new the e-marketplace. 

Safeguarding 

26. We will ensure that carers know how to raise concerns about the person they are caring for or 
themselves, and what to do in an emergency. The Council and its partners will co-operate in 
safeguarding the welfare of vulnerable adults and children as set out in the Care Act 2014 and the 
Children Act 1989. Contingency planning for carers will be part of the assessment and support plan. 

Governance 

Page 11

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 10 

27. We value the involvement with carers and their support organisations and this is supported by our 
commitment to co-production.  We will ensure that engagement mechanisms are in place for carers 
to discuss service developments and keep the Health and Well Being Board informed about carers 
issues on a regular basis. 

Implementation and evaluation 
28. This Strategy will run from April 2015 to March 2017 and the Health and Well Being Board will 

receive an annual update about progress against agreed outcomes.  Outcomes will be developed by 
commissioners and partners including carers and carer support organisations. These will reflect the 
requirements of the Care Act 2014 and the Children and Families Act 2014.  We will evaluate the 
success of this strategy against the agreed outcomes, celebrate successes, and take appropriate 
corrective action where necessary.  

Page 12

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 11 

Appendix 
Worcestershire Carers' Charter 2010 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Carers in Worcestershire can expect: 

Choice about undertaking their caring role - regarding the level and extent of care they offer, depending 
on age, ability and circumstance 

Respect and recognition for their contribution, and inclusion as valued care partners when planning 
support for the person they care for 

An assessment of their needs and aspirations, irrespective of their personal financial situation 

Personalised information, advice and support that addresses their individual situation 

Support to maintain their own health and well being 

Support for and recognition of their right to a life outside of caring 

Support to provide care in a safe environment 

The right to their say over the support services they receive 

To be treated with respect and dignity, especially regarding their age, gender, disability, race, religion or 
belief and sexual orientation 

Awareness and understanding by all key agencies of carers issues 

Commitment by all key agencies to identify carers in the community, including those from under-
represented groups, and provide appropriate information and signposting to relevant services 

Appropriate support from agencies working in a co-ordinated way 

The right to their say over the delivery of carer support services at a strategic level (if they wish) 

 

What is this charter for? 

The purpose of this charter is to describe what carers can expect when accessing support from key 
services in the county. The charter is a statement of commitment from these key services.   

Who is this charter for?  

This charter is for all carers aged 18 years and over in Worcestershire who provide care for other adults.  

A carer, as defined in the county's new Carers Strategy 'Carers at the Heart of Worcestershire's Families 
and Communities', is "a person who, free of charge*, looks after over a period of time a partner, child, 
relative, friend or neighbour who because of disability, illness, the effects of old age or any other needs 
cannot manage at home without help."  

Page 13

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 12 

* some carers receive Carers Allowance but this is not payment for their caring work but recognition of 
the extra costs associated with being a carer   

Where does it come from?  

This Charter has been developed jointly by Worcestershire County Council's Adult and Community 
Service Directorate, NHS Worcestershire, Carers Action Worcestershire, and wider representatives of 
the countywide Carers Consultative Group.  

 

Signatories 
The following organisations have also given their commitment to the charter: 

• Worcestershire Health and Care NHS Trust 

• Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 

• The District Councils of Bromsgrove, Malvern Hills, Redditch, Worcester City, Wychavon and 
Wyre Forest 

• The Worcestershire Association of Voluntary Organisations in Community Care  

• Worcestershire's Older People's Forums    

• Worcestershire Chamber of Commerce  

• Job Centre Plus 

• Worcestershire's Citizens Advice Bureaux  

• West Mercia Police  

• Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service  

• West Midlands Ambulance Service  

Clearly each organisation will only be able to deliver specific aspects of this charter, and therefore if we 
are to meet the aspirations of the charter in full we need the full range of organisations to fully commit to 
its delivery. 

Page 14

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


 

 

Worcestershire County Council – Health and Well-being Board 

 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk  

Page | 13 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e  

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk/healthandwellbeingboard 

 
 

Worcestershire 
Health and Well-being Board 

 
Worcestershire Carers Strategy 

Consultation 
 
 
 

The Carers Strategy for Worcestershire – Carers at the Heart of 
Worcestershire's Families and Communities 2010 – 2014 is being 
refreshed. This document will set out the background to how Carers will 
be able to access support through various means and the commitments 
by stakeholders to support carers in their role. 
 
Please read through the strategy document and then answer the 
questions below and return to the address given at the bottom by 
Sunday, 8th March 2015. If you have any questions or queries, please 
contact Martin Heuter via the details given at the bottom of this 
document. 
 
Please consider the following questions in relation to the Carers 
Strategy refresh 2014 
 

1. Paragraph 9: This vision was developed with Worcestershire 
carers and their support groups.  Do you agree or disagree with 
this statement.  

 
Agree   
Disagree  
 
If you have any comments you wish to share with us please write 
them in the box below 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 17



2 | P a g e  

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk/healthandwellbeingboard 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. Paragraph 10: Worcestershire's Commitment to Carers is based 
on what many carers in both Worcestershire and nationally have 
said about the support they require to care.  Do you agree or 
disagree with these statements?  

 
Agree   
Disagree  
 
If you have any comments you wish to share with us please write 
them in the box below 
 
y have 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Paragraphs 13-14: this section suggests how the key stakeholders 
are proposing to ensure that carers have access to the right 
information and advice to continue to care and to have a life 
outside of caring. Do you agree or disagree with these proposals. 
 
Agree   
Disagree  
 
If you have any comments you wish to share with us please write 
them in the box below 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 18



3 | P a g e  

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk/healthandwellbeingboard 

 
 

 
 

4. Paragraphs 15-16: this section suggests how the key stakeholders 
are proposing to ensure that carers have the right support 
available to them. Do you agree or disagree with these proposals. 
If you have any comments you wish to share with us please write 
them in the box below 

 
Agree   
Disagree  

 

 
 
 

5. Paragraph 17: this section proposes that key agencies will 
commission a training programme for carers – do you agree or 
disagree with this proposal 

 
Agree   
Disagree  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



4 | P a g e  

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk/healthandwellbeingboard 

 
 

6. Paragraphs 18-19: this section proposes how Health and other 
partners will become 'Carer Aware' and support adult and young 
carers. Do you agree or disagree with this section 

 
Agree   
Disagree  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. Paragraphs 20 – 23: this section talks about Social Care 

assessments for carers, a statutory duty under the Care Act.  
Please let us know your thoughts on how we intend to carry out 
these assessments. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
8. Paragraphs 24 – 25: The Care Act stipulates that personal budgets 

have to be offered to carers who have an eligible need and should 
be offered this as a  direct payment if they want it – please give us 
your views on our proposals 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 20



5 | P a g e  

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk/healthandwellbeingboard 

 
 

 
9. Paragraph 27: please give us your views on how you feel carers 

can be giving commissioners and providers their views on 
proposals for service design and change in the future. 

 

 
 

 
10. There is a space here for any other comments/ 

questions/suggestions you may have/want to make.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please complete this form and send back by 8th March 2015 to  
 
 
Martin Heuter 
Joint Commissioning Manager 
Integrated Commissioning Unit 
Worcestershire County Council 
Spetchley Road 
Worcester 
WR5 2NP 
 
Or email to mheuter@worcestershire.gov.uk. 
This questionnaire is also available on our website; please go here 
https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/s.asp?k=142200639453 
 

 

Page 21

mailto:mheuter@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://www.snapsurveys.com/wh/s.asp?k=142200639453


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Carers Strategy 2015-2017
	Appendix 1 Carer Strategy
	Worcestershire Carers Strategy 2015-17
	Contents
	Introduction
	Context
	National
	Local

	The local picture
	Vision
	Worcestershire's Commitment to Carers
	Outcomes – what do we want to achieve?
	Local Outcomes
	National Outcomes from National Carers Strategy 2014-16
	Key themes and approaches - how are we going to achieve it?
	Information and advice
	Support in the community
	Training
	Health and other universal services
	Adult social care assessments
	Adult social care funded services
	Safeguarding
	Governance

	Implementation and evaluation
	Appendix
	Worcestershire Carers' Charter 2010
	What is this charter for?
	Who is this charter for?
	Where does it come from?
	Signatories



	Appendix 2 - Carer Questionnaire


